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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

SCHEDULE 13G

Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

(Amendment No. 3)*

CALLAWAY GOLF COMPANY

(Name of Issuer)

Common Stock

(Title of Class of Securities)

131193104

(CUSIP Number)

December 31, 2014
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(Date of Event Which Requires Filing of this Statement)

Check the appropriate box to designate the rule pursuant to which this Schedule is filed:

x Rule 13d-1(b)

" Rule 13d-1(c)

" Rule 13d-1(d)

* The remainder of this cover page shall be filled out for a reporting person s initial filing on this form with respect to the subject class of
securities, and for any subsequent amendment containing information which would alter the disclosures provided in a prior cover page.

The information required in the remainder of this cover page shall not be deemed to be filed for the purpose of Section 18 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 ( Act ) or otherwise subject to the liabilities of that section of the Act but shall be subject to all other provisions of the Act

(however, see the Notes).
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CUSIP No. 131193104

1. Names of Reporting Persons.

L.R.S. Identification Nos. of above persons (entities only).

Dimensional Fund Advisors LP (Tax ID: 30-0447847)
2. Check the Appropriate Box if a Member of a Group (See Instructions)

@ -

(b) x
3. SEC Use Only

4. Citizenship or Place of Organization

Delaware Limited Partnership
5. Sole Voting Power

Number of
Shares
Beneficially 6334674 **see Note 1**
6. Shared Voting Power
Owned by
Each
Reporting
0
Person 7. Sole Dispositive Power
With

6575256 **see Note 1**

8. Shared Dispositive Power



10.

11.

12.
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0
Aggregate Amount Beneficially Owned by Each Reporting Person

6575256 **see Note 1**
Check if the Aggregate Amount in Row (9) Excludes Certain Shares (See Instructions)

N/A
Percent of Class Represented by Amount in Row (9)

8.48%
Type of Reporting Person (See Instructions)

IA



Item 1.

Item 2.

Item 3.

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(©

()]

()
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Name of Issuer

CALLAWAY GOLF COMPANY

Address of Issuer s Principal Executive Offices

2180 Rutherford Road, Carlsbad,CA 92008

Name of Person Filing

Dimensional Fund Advisors LP

Address of Principal Business Office, or if none, Residence

Building One
6300 Bee Cave Road

Austin, Texas, 78746

Citizenship

Delaware Limited Partnership

Title of Class of Securities

Common Stock

CUSIP Number

131193104

If this statement is filed pursuant to Sec. 240.13d-1(b) or 240.13d-2(b) or (c), check whether the person filing is a:

(@)
(b)
(©
(d)
(e
®
(®

Broker or dealer registered under section 15 of the Act (15 U.S.C. 780);

Bank as defined in section 3(a)(6) of the Act (15 U.S.C. 78c);

Insurance company as defined in section 3(a)(19) of the Act (15 U.S.C. 78c¢);

Investment company registered under section 8 of the Investment Company Act of 1940 (15 U.S.C. 80a-8);
X Aninvestment adviser in accordance with Sec. 240.13d-1(b)(1)(ii)(E);

An employee benefit plan or endowment fund in accordance with Sec. 240.13d-1(b)(1)(ii)(F);

A parent holding company or control person in accordance with Sec. 240.13d-1(b)(1)(ii)(G);



Edgar Filing: CALLAWAY GOLF CO - Form SC 13G/A

(h) A savings associations as defined in Section 3(b) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act (12 U.S.C. 1813);

(i) A church plan that is excluded from the definition of an investment company under section 3(c)(14) of the Investment
Company Act of 1940 (15 U.S.C. 80a-3);

(G © Anon-U.S. institution in accordance with Sec. 240.13d-1(b)(1)(i1)(J);
(k) ~  Group, in accordance with Sec. 240.13d-1(b)(1)(ii){J).
Item 4. Ownership.
Provide the following information regarding the aggregate number and percentage of the class of securities of the issuer identified in Item 1.

(a) Amount beneficially owned:

6575256 **see Note 1**

(b) Percent of class:

8.48%
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(©) Number of shares as to which the person has:

(1) Sole power to vote or to direct the vote:

6334674 **see Note 1**

(i) Shared power to vote or to direct the vote:

0

(iii) Sole power to dispose or to direct the disposition of:

6575256 **see Note 1**

(iv) Shared power to dispose or to direct the disposition of:

** Note 1 ** Dimensional Fund Advisors LP, an investment adviser registered under Section 203 of the Investment Advisors Act of 1940,
furnishes investment advice to four investment companies registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, and serves as investment
manager or sub-adviser to certain other commingled funds, group trusts and separate accounts (such investment companies, trusts and accounts,
collectively referred to as the Funds ). In certain cases, subsidiaries of Dimensional Fund Advisors LP may act as an adviser or sub-adviser to
certain Funds. In its role as investment advisor, sub-adviser and/or manager, Dimensional Fund Advisors LP or its subsidiaries (collectively,
Dimensional ) may possess voting and/or investment power over the securities of the Issuer that are owned by the Funds, and may be deemed to
be the beneficial owner of the shares of the Issuer held by the Funds. However, all securities reported in this schedule are owned by the Funds.
Dimensional disclaims beneficial ownership of such securities. In addition, the filing of this Schedule 13G shall not be construed as an
admission that the reporting person or any of its affiliates is the beneficial owner of any securities covered by this Schedule 13G for any other
purposes than Section 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

Item 5. Ownership of Five Percent or Less of a Class

If this statement is being filed to report the fact that as of the date hereof the reporting person has ceased to be the beneficial owner of more than
five percent of the class of securities, check the following [ ].

Item 6. Ownership of More than Five Percent on Behalf of Another Person

The Funds described in Note 1 above have the right to receive or the power to direct the receipt of dividends from, or the proceeds
from the sale of the securities held in their respective accounts. To the knowledge of Dimensional, the interest of any one such Fund
does not exceed 5% of the class of securities. Dimensional Fund Advisors LP disclaims beneficial ownership of all such securities.

Item 7. Identification and Classification of the Subsidiary Which Acquired the Security Being Reported on By the Parent Holding Company
or Control Person.

N/A

Item 8. Identification and Classification of Members of the Group
N/A

Item 9. Notice of Dissolution of Group
N/A

Item 10. Certification
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By signing below I certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the securities referred to above were acquired and are held in
the ordinary course of business and were not acquired and are not held for the purpose of or with the effect of changing or
influencing the control of the issuer of the securities and were not acquired and are not held in connection with or as a participant in
any transaction having that purpose or effect, other than activities solely in connection with a nomination under Sec. 240.14a-11.
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SIGNATURE

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, I certify that the information set forth in this statement is true, complete
and correct.

DIMENSIONAL FUND ADVISORS LP

February 5, 2015

Date
By: Dimensional Holdings Inc., General Partner

/s/ Christopher Crossan

Signature

Global Chief Compliance Officer

Title
on-transferable, revocable privilege in which the licensee acquires no vested interest. The Colorado Gaming
Commission could choose not to renew that license if it has concerns about our management, operations, business
practices or associations.

10
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Additionally, any violation of gaming laws or regulations could result in the assessment of substantial fines against us
and the persons involved. The suspension, revocation or non-renewal of any of our licenses or the levy on us of
substantial fines could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Holders of our stock are subject to investigation by the Colorado Gaming Commission.

The Colorado Gaming Commission requires that any beneficial owner of five percent or more of our
securities, including holders of our common stock, file an application for a finding of suitability. The gaming authority
has the power to investigate an owner's suitability and the owner must pay all costs of the investigation. If the owner is
found unsuitable, then the owner may be required by law to dispose of our securities.

Changes in regulatory environment could have a material adverse effect on our operating results.

From time to time, legislators and special interest groups have proposed legislation that would expand, restrict
or prevent gaming operations or which may otherwise adversely impact our operations. Any expansion of gaming or
restriction on or prohibition of our gaming operations could have a material adverse effect on our operating results.

We face substantial competition from other gaming operations and other forms of gaming that could have a
material adverse effect on our future operations.

We operate in a very competitive environment. Casinos offering hotel accommodations for overnight stays
may have a competitive advantage over our casino. In addition, many of the casinos in Black Hawk and Central City
are operated by large companies with multi-state operations and substantial resources. Our casinos also indirectly face
competition from other forms of gaming, including the Colorado state-run lottery, multi-state lottery, online computer
gaming, charitable bingo and horse and dog racing, as well as other forms of entertainment.

Additional legalization of gaming in Colorado could adversely affect our business.

Additional legalization of gaming in or near any area from which our casino draws customers would adversely
affect our business. Colorado law requires statewide voter approval for any expansion of limited gaming into
additional locations and depending on the authorization approved by the statewide vote, may also require voter
approval from the locality in question. Several attempts have been made by various parties in recent years to expand
gaming in Colorado. However, to date none of this legislation has passed. However, there can be no assurance that
such legislation will not be implemented in Colorado. If such legislation is approved by the Colorado legislature or
Colorado voters, it would likely have a material adverse impact on our future operating results.

10
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Construction of a new roadway from Interstate 70 to Central City has not had a material beneficial impact on our
business.

In November 2004, Central City completed a new four-lane road from Interstate 70 at Hidden Valley directly
into downtown Central City. This roadway allows drivers to reach Central City without driving through Clear Creek
Canyon and Black Hawk. While there was an initial increase in business following the opening of the highway, for the
past several years that business has been

11
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waning, and we do not believe that it will have any lasting positive impact on Doc Holliday operations.

We may face difficulties in attracting and retaining qualified employees for our casinos.

The operation of our casinos requires qualified executives, managers and skilled employees with gaming
industry experience and qualifications to obtain the requisite licenses. Currently, there is a shortage of skilled labor in
the gaming industry. We believe this shortage will make it increasingly difficult and expensive for the manager of our
casino to attract and retain qualified employees. Increasing competition in Black Hawk, Central City and competing
markets may lead to higher costs in order to retain and attract qualified employees. We may incur higher labor costs in
order for the casino management to attract qualified employees from existing gaming facilities. While we believe that
we will be able to attract and retain qualified employees, we may have difficulty attracting a satisfactory number, and
we may incur higher costs than expected as a result.

Adverse weather, road conditions and infrastructure limitations affect our ability to attract customers.

The location of our casinos in the Rocky Mountains creates a risk that it will be subject to inclement weather,
particularly snow. Severe weather conditions could cause significant physical damage to the casino or result in
reduced hours of operation or access to the casinos. Black Hawk and Central City are served by winding mountain
roads that require cautious driving, particularly in bad weather, and are subject to driving restrictions and closure.
Congestion on the roads leading to Black Hawk and Central City is common during the peak summer season, holidays
and other times and may discourage potential customers from traveling to the casinos, particularly if road construction
is in process.

Because we are dependent on two casinos for all of our cash flow, local economic conditions and other local
conditions and circumstances beyond our control could adversely affect our business.

We are entirely dependent upon our two casinos for all of our cash flow. Therefore, we are subject to greater
risks than a geographically diversified gaming company. These greater risks include those caused by any of the risks
described in this section, including:

- local economic and competitive conditions;

- inaccessibility due to road construction or closure on primary access
routes;

12
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changes in local and state governmental laws and regulations;

natural and other disasters;

a decline in the number of residents near or visitors to Black Hawk
and Central City; or

a decrease in gaming activities in Black Hawk and Central City.

12
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Any of the factors outlined above could adversely affect our ability to generate sufficient cash flow to continue
to operate our casino. A recession or economic slowdown could cause a reduction in visitation to the casino, which
would adversely affect our operating results.

The recently enacted smoking ban in casinos has had a material adverse impact on gaming operations in Colorado,
including our casinos.

Effective January 1, 2008, a new Colorado law imposed a smoking ban applicable to all casinos in the state. Our data
shows that a vast majority of our most important customers are smokers, and may be deterred from gaming because of
the ban. Smoking bans in other jurisdictions have resulted in revenue declines of 10% or more. While the impact of
the smoking ban on our casinos is uncertain, it is likely to have an adverse impact on our gaming revenues.

Increases in the price of gasoline has had a material adverse impact on the gaming industry.

Black Hawk and Central City are only accessible by auto or bus. As a result, the recent sharp increases in the price of
gasoline has had a material adverse impact on our operations, inasmuch as the primary demographic of our customers
is retired persons on fixed incomes. It is unlikely that we will be able to offset the effects of increased transporation
costs with marketing and other incentives.

We are subject to environmental laws and potential exposure to environmental liabilities, which could be costly.

We are subject to laws and regulations that impose liability and clean-up responsibility for releases of
hazardous substances into the environment. Under certain of these laws and regulations, we could be held liable for
the costs of remediating contaminated soil or groundwater on or from our property without regard to whether we knew
of, or caused, the contamination, as well as incur liability to third parties impacted by such contamination. The
presence of contamination, or failure to remediate it properly, may adversely affect our ability to sell or rent such

property.

Our casino is located within the geographic footprint of the Clear Creek/Central City Superfund Site, a large
area of historic mining activity, which is the subject of state and federal clean-up actions. Although we have not been
named a potentially responsible party for this Superfund Site, it is possible that as a result of our ownership and
operation of our property (on which mining may have occurred in the past), we may occur costs related to this matter
in the future. To date, none of these matters of other matters arising under environmental laws has had a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, or results of operations; however, there can be no assurance that
such matters will not have such an effect in the future.

14
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The rate of taxation on gaming profits may increase in the future.

The Colorado Constitution permits a gaming tax of up to 40% on adjusted gross gaming proceeds. The
Colorado Gaming Commission has the authority to set gaming tax rates and the current rate structure is a progressive
scale with a maximum tax of 20%. The cities of Black Hawk and Central City have imposed an annual device fee of
$750 per gaming device and it revises the same from time to time. The Colorado Gaming Commission has eliminated
its annual device fee for gaming machines. The Colorado Gaming Commission may revise the gaming tax or
re-impose the state device fee at any time and has been conducting annual reviews to reconsider and reevaluate the
gaming taxes on or about July 1st of each year. We cannot assure you that the tax rates applicable to

13
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the casino will not be increased in the future by either the Colorado Gaming Commission or the cities of Black Hawk
or Central City. Additionally, from time to time, certain federal legislators have proposed the imposition of a federal
tax on gaming revenues. Any such tax could adversely affect our financial condition or results of operations.

Energy and fuel price increases may adversely affect our costs of operations and our revenues.

Our casino properties use significant amounts of electricity, natural gas and other forms of energy. While no
shortages of energy have been experienced, the recent substantial increases in the cost of electricity in the United
States may negatively affect our results of operations. The extent of the impact is subject to the magnitude and
duration of the energy and fuel price increases.

We experience quarterly fluctuations in our results of operations.

Our quarterly operating results fluctuate because of seasonality and other factors. We typically generate the
best operating profits in our fourth and first fiscal quarters, which end in June and September, respectively. These
seasonal trends may impact our financial condition to the extent we need more funds during periods of slower activity
in the future.

We have not paid dividends and do not anticipate paying any dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable
Sfuture.

We anticipate that we will retain all future earnings and other cash resources for the future operation and
development of our business. We do not intend to declare or pay any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.
Payment of any future dividends will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors after taking into account many
factors, including our operating results, financial condition, current and anticipated cash needs, and other factors.

The existence of outstanding convertible preferred stock, options and warrants may impair our ability to raise
capital.

At September 1, 2008, there were 935,000 shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of convertible
preferred stock and exercise of outstanding options and warrants at a weighted average exercise price of $0.90 per
share. During the life of the preferred stock, options and warrants, the holders are given an opportunity to profit from
arise in the market price of our common stock with a resulting dilution in the interest of the other shareholders. Our
ability to obtain additional financing during the period the warrants are outstanding may be adversely affected and the
existence of the warrants may have an effect on the price of our common stock. The holders of the warrants may be

16
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expected to exercise them at a time when we would, in all likelihood, be able to obtain any needed capital by a new
offering of securities on terms more favorable than those provided by the warrants.

There are trading risks for low priced stocks.

Our common stock is currently traded in the over-the-counter market on the "Electronic Bulletin Board" of the
National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. As a consequence, an investor could find it more difficult to dispose
of, or to obtain accurate quotations as to the price of, our securities.

14
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The Securities Enforcement and Penny Stock Reform Act of 1990 requires additional disclosure, relating to
the market for penny stocks, in connection with trades in any stock defined as a penny stock. The Commission
recently adopted regulations that generally define a penny stock to be any equity security that has a market price of
less than $5.00 per share, subject to certain exceptions. Such exceptions include any equity security listed on
NASDAQ and any equity security issued by an issuer that has (i) net tangible assets of at least $2,000,000, if such
issuer has been in continuous operation for three (3) years, (ii) net tangible assets of at least $5,000,000, if such issuer
has been in continuous operation for less than three (3) years, or (iii) average annual revenue of at least $6,000,000, if
such issuer has been in continuous operation for less than three (3) years. Unless an exception is available, the
regulations require the delivery, prior to any transaction involving a penny stock, of a disclosure schedule explaining
the penny stock market and the risks associated therewith.

If our securities are not quoted on NASDAQ, or we do not have $2,000,000 in net tangible assets, trading in
our securities will be covered by Rules 15-g-1 through 15-g-6 promulgated under the Exchange Act for
non-NASDAQ and non-exchange listed securities. Under such rules, broker-dealers who recommend such securities
to persons other than established customers and accredited investors must make a special written suitability
determination that the penny stock is a suitable investment for the purchaser and receive the purchaser's written
agreement to this transaction. Securities are exempt from these rules if the market price of the common stock is at
least $5.00 per share.

The market price of our securities could be adversely affected by sales of restricted securities.

Actual sales or the prospect of future sales of shares of our common stock under Rule 144 may have a
depressive effect upon the price of, and market for, our common stock. As of September 15, 2008, 5,955,215 shares
of our common stock were issued and outstanding. Approximately 3,021,539 of these shares are "restricted securities"
and under some circumstances may, in the future, be under a registration under the Securities Act or in compliance
with Rule 144 adopted under the Securities Act.

We cannot predict what effect, if any, that sales of shares of common stock, or the availability of these shares for sale,
will have on the market prices prevailing from time-to-time. Nevertheless, the possibility that substantial amounts of
common stock may be sold in the public market may adversely effect prevailing prices for our common stock and
could impair our ability to raise capital in the future through the sale of equity securities.

Our ability to issue additional securities without shareholder approval could have substantial dilutive and other
adverse effects on existing stockholders and investors in this offering.

We have the authority to issue additional shares of common stock and to issue options and warrants to
purchase shares of our common stock without shareholder approval. Future issuance of common stock could be at
values substantially below the exercise price of the warrants, and therefore could represent further substantial dilution
to you as an investor in this offering. In addition, we could issue large blocks of voting stock to fend off unwanted

18
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tender offers or hostile takeovers without further shareholder approval.

15
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Our corporate charter makes certain limitations on director liability.

Our Articles of Incorporation provide, as permitted by Utah law, that our directors shall not be personally
liable to the corporation or our stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director, with
certain exceptions. These provisions may discourage stockholders from bringing suit against a director for breach of
fiduciary duty and may reduce the likelihood of derivative litigation brought by stockholders on behalf of us against
directors. In addition, our Articles of Incorporation and bylaws provide for mandatory indemnification of directors
and officers to the fullest extent permitted by Utah law.

Changes in the corporate and securities laws and regulations are likely to increase our costs.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (SOX), which became law in July 2002, has required changes in some of our
corporate governance, securities disclosure and compliance practices. In response to the requirements of SOX, the
SEC and major stock exchanges have promulgated new rules and listing standards covering a variety of subjects.
Compliance with these new rules and listing standards that are likely to increase our general and administrative costs,
and we expect these to continue to increase in the future. In particular, we are required to include the management
report on internal control as part of this annual report for the year ending June 30, 2008 pursuant to Section 404 of
SOX. We have evaluated our internal control systems in order (i) to allow management to report on, as required by
these laws, rules and regulations, (ii) to provide reasonable assurance that our public disclosure will be accurate and
complete, and (iii) to comply with the other provisions of Section 404 of SOX. Beginning with our annual report for
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009, we will be required to include with the management report the attestation of our
independent registered auditors. Future compliance with SOX 404 will require a significant expenditure of human
resources and finances, and could adversely impact our operations. Furthermore, there is no precedent available by
which to measure compliance adequacy. If we are not able to implement the requirements relating to internal controls
and all other provisions of Section 404 in a timely fashion or achieve adequate compliance with these requirements or
other requirements of SOX, we might become subject to sanctions or investigation by regulatory authorities such as
the SEC or NASD. Any such action may materially adversely affect our reputation, financial condition and the value
of our securities, including our common stock. We expect that SOX and these other laws, rules and regulations will
increase legal and financial compliance costs and will make our corporate governance activities more difficult,
time-consuming and costly. We also expect that these new requirements will make it more difficult and expensive for
us to obtain director and officer liability insurance.

If we fail to maintain an effective system of internal controls, we may not be able to accurately report our financial
results or prevent fraud. As a result, current and potential shareholders could lose confidence in our financial
reporting, which would harm our business and the trading price of our stock.

Effective internal controls are necessary for us to provide reliable financial reports and effectively prevent fraud. If
we cannot provide financial reports or prevent fraud, our business reputation and operating results could be harmed.
Inferior internal controls could also cause investors to lose confidence in our reported financial information, which
could have a negative effect on the trading price of our stock.

20
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Members of our management have conflicts of interest.

Our directors, are, or may become in their individual capacity, officers, and directors, controlling shareholders
and/or partners of other entities engaged in a variety of businesses. Thus, they may develop conflicts of interest
including, among other things, time, effort, and corporate opportunity, involved in participation with such other
business entities. The amount of time that our directors will devote to our business will be limited.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

None

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Corporate Offices

Prior to January 2006, we leased approximately 4,200 square feet of space used as its corporate offices. The lease
required monthly payments of approximately $3,500. A portion of the space was subleased for monthly rental income
of approximately $2,500. In January 2006, the lease with the landlord was terminated and assumed by Gunpark Asset
Management, LL.C (Gunpark), a company operated by the Company s former President and Director. Concurrently,
the Company entered into a Shared Services Agreement with Gunpark. The agreement required Gunpark provide
sufficient office space to the Company, and requires the Company make monthly payments directly to the landlord of
$3,000. The monthly payment was allocated as $2,000 to rent expense, and $1,000 to clerical services. In March
2008, the agreement was modified by both parties due to changes in the delivery of clerical services to be provided
under the previous agreement. By mutual agreement of both parties, the current agreement expired June 1, 2008.
Upon termination of the Shared Services Agreement, we began utilizing certain office functions and systems
managed by the Company s president and chief executive officer in Boulder, Colorado. As such, we have significantly
reduced our corporate office space requirements and do not expect additional further office space or services will be
required under the current corporate operating structure.

Operating Subsidiaries

22
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The facilities and properties of the Company's operating subsidiaries are more fully described in Item 1 of this
Report and are incorporated herein by this reference.

The Company believes that each of its facilities is adequate for its intended purpose and does not plan any
significant investment in additional facilities during the next year.

17
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company and its officers and directors are involved in the following material legal proceedings:

Civil Litigation

Michael Jacobs vs. Global Casinos, Inc. This matter has been pending for more than ten years without any action
having been taken by the plaintiff. Management has concluded that after this annual report, unless action is
subsequently taken, the matter is no longer required to be disclosed as pending.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None, except as previously disclosed.

18
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PART II

ITEMS. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT S COMMON EQUITY AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The outstanding shares of Common Stock are traded over-the-counter and quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board
("OTCBB") under the symbol "GBCS". The reported high and low bid and ask prices for the common stock are
shown below for the period from July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2008.

Bid Ask
High Low High  Low

20076 Fiscal Year

July - Sept 2006 $0.91 $0.88 $1.01 $0.93

Oct - Dec 2006 0.90 0.70 1.00 0.74

Jan - Mar 2007 0.79 0.68 0.85 0.70

Apr - June 2007 0.85 0.60 0.85 0.65
2008 Fiscal Year

July - Sept 2007 $0.88 $0.70 $0.95 $0.80

Oct Dec 2007 0.90 0.60 1.01 0.73

Jan Mar 2008 0.80 0.52 0.95 0.70

Apr June 2008 0.88 0.52 0.96 0.64

The bid and ask prices of the Company's common stock as of September 15, 2008 were $0.75 and $0.89
respectively, as reported on the OTCBB. The OTCBB prices are bid and ask prices which represent prices between
broker-dealers and do not include retail mark-ups and mark-downs or any commissions to the broker-dealer. The
prices do not reflect prices in actual transactions. As of September 15, 2008, there were approximately 133 record
owners of the Company's common stock.

The OTC Bulletin Board is a registered quotation service that displays real-time quotes, last sale prices and
volume information in over-the-counter (OTC) securities. An OTC equity security generally is any equity that is not
listed or traded on NASDAQ or a national securities exchange. The OTCBB is not an issuer listing service, market or
exchange. Although the OTCBB does not have any listing requirements, per se, to be eligible for quotation on the
OTCBB, issuers must remain current in their filings with the SEC or applicable regulatory authority.

The Company's Board of Directors may declare and pay dividends on outstanding shares of common stock out of
funds legally available therefore in its sole discretion; however, to date other than the 8% dividend payable on our
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outstanding shares of Series D Preferred Stock, no dividends have been paid on common stock and the Company does
not anticipate the payment of dividends in the foreseeable future. Further, under the terms of the convertible preferred
stock issued by the Company, the Company is restricted from paying cash dividends on common stock during the
period that the convertible preferred stock is outstanding.

19
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Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

1. In January 2005, we completed the private placement of units, each unit consisting of a 12% convertible
debenture and a warrant exercisable to purchase one share of our common stock for each dollar in principal amount of
debenture at an exercise price of $0.15. In total, up to 1,500,000 shares of our common stock could be issued if all of
the debentures were converted and all of the warrants exercised. Gross proceeds of the offering were $500,000, which
proceeds were used to retire a secured note and an option held by Astraea Investment Management, L.P. The units
were sold to a total of six investors, each of whom qualifies as an "accredited investor" within the meaning of Rule
501(a) of Regulation D under the Securities Act. The securities were taken for investment purposes and were subject
to restrictions on transfer. The securities were issued in reliance on Rule 506, Regulation D promulgated under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

2. Warrant Exercise

From October to December, 2005, the Company completed the sale of an aggregate of 650,000 shares of common
stock, $.05 par value ( Common Stock ) at a price of $.15 per share pursuant to the exercise of issued and outstanding
warrants. The Company received gross proceeds of $97,500 from the exercise of the warrants. The warrants had been
sold in private placements that were completed in January, 2005.

b.

The Securities were sold exclusively to persons who qualified as "accredited investors" within the meaning of Rule
501(a) of Regulation D under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended (the "Securities Act"). There were an aggregate
of seven accredited investors who participated in the offering. The shares issued upon exercise of the warrants were

restricted securities under the Securities Act. The Company has agreed to register for resale under the Securities Act,
the shares of Common Stock underlying the Warrants.

The Company paid no fees or commissions in connection with the warrant exercise.

d.

The sale of the Securities was undertaken without registration under the Securities Act in reliance upon an exemption
from the registration requirements of the Securities Act set forth in Section 4(2) thereunder. Each of the investors in
the offering qualified as an "accredited investor" within the meaning of Rule 501(a) of Regulation D. In addition, the
Securities, which were taken for investment purposes and not for resale, were subject to restrictions on transfer. We
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did not engage in any public advertising or general solicitation in connection with this transaction, and we provided
each investor in the offering with disclosure of all aspects of our business, including providing each investor with our
reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and other financial, business and corporate information.
Based on our investigation, we believed that each accredited investor obtained all information regarding the Company
that they requested, received answers to all questions posed and otherwise understood the risks of accepting our
Securities for investment purposes.

The exercise terms of the Warrants are described in Item 3.02(a) above.

The proceeds of the warrant exercises will be used to provide working capital to the Company.
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3. Debenture Conversion

In January, 2005, the Company completed the sale of an aggregate of $500,000 in 12% Convertible Debentures.
Pursuant to the agreement of the investors who purchased the Debentures, all outstanding Debentures converted
automatically into shares of Common Stock on December 31, 2005. The price at which the Debentures converted was
$.50 per share. An aggregate of 1.0 million shares of Common Stock became issuable as a result of the automatic
conversion

b.

The shares issued upon conversion of the Debentures were issued exclusively to persons who qualified as "accredited
investors" within the meaning of Rule 501(a) of Regulation D under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended (the
"Securities Act"). There were an aggregate of six accredited investors who participated in the transaction. The shares
issued upon conversion of the Debentures were restricted securities under the Securities Act. The Company has agreed
to register for resale under the Securities Act, the shares of Common Stock underlying the Debentures.

The Company paid no fees or commissions in connection with the Debenture conversion.

d.

The sale of the Securities was undertaken without registration under the Securities Act in reliance upon an exemption
from the registration requirements of the Securities Act set forth in Sections 4(2) and 3(a)(9) thereunder. Each of the
investors in the offering qualified as an "accredited investor" within the meaning of Rule 501(a) of Regulation D. In
addition, the Securities, which were taken for investment purposes and not for resale, were subject to restrictions on
transfer. We did not engage in any public advertising or general solicitation in connection with this transaction, and
we provided each investor in the offering with disclosure of all aspects of our business, including providing each
investor with our reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and other financial, business and
corporate information. Based on our investigation, we believed that each accredited investor obtained all information
regarding the Company that they requested, received answers to all questions posed and otherwise understood the
risks of accepting our Securities for investment purposes.

The conversion terms of the Debentures are described in Item 3.02(g) above.
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f.

There were no proceeds received as a result of the conversion of the Debentures.

4.  Schmidt Conversion

a.

In November, 1996, the Company completed the sale of two promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount of
$25,000. In December 2005, and pursuant to the agreement of the noteholder who held the notes, the Company
agreed to issue to the investor an aggregate of 22,250 shares of Common Stock and $33,000 in consideration of the
investor s surrender of the notes and any further claims against the Company. Under the agreement with the
noteholder, the shares were valued at $1.00 per share.

b.

The shares issued upon conversion of the two notes were issued exclusively to one person who represented and

warranted as to his financial sophistication. The shares issued upon conversion of the notes were restricted securities

under the Securities Act.
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The Company paid no fees or commissions in connection with the note conversion.

d.

The sale of the Securities was undertaken without registration under the Securities Act in reliance upon an exemption
from the registration requirements of the Securities Act set forth in Sections 4(2) thereunder. In addition, the
Securities, which were taken for investment purposes and not for resale, were subject to restrictions on transfer. We
did not engage in any public advertising or general solicitation in connection with this transaction, and we provided
each investor in the offering with disclosure of all aspects of our business, including providing each investor with our
reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and other financial, business and corporate information.
Based on our investigation, we believed that the investor obtained all information regarding the Company that he
requested, received answers to all questions posed and otherwise understood the risks of accepting our Securities for
investment purposes.

Not applicable.

There were no proceeds received as a result of the conversion of the notes.

5. Jennings Option Exercise

In December, 2005, the Company completed the sale of an aggregate of 150,000 shares of common stock, $.05 par
value ( Common Stock ) at an average price of $.12 per share pursuant to the exercise of issued and outstanding
options. The Company received gross proceeds of $17,500 from the exercise of the options. The options had been
granted to our former President and Director for his services to the Company.
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The Securities were sold exclusively to one person who qualified as an "accredited investor" within the meaning of
Rule 501(a) of Regulation D under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended (the "Securities Act"). The shares issued
upon exercise of the warrants were restricted securities under the Securities Act.

The Company paid no fees or commissions in connection with the option exercise.

d.

The sale of the Securities was undertaken without registration under the Securities Act in reliance upon an exemption
from the registration requirements of the Securities Act set forth in Section 4(2) thereunder. The investor qualified as
an "accredited investor” within the meaning of Rule 501(a) of Regulation D, as he was an executive officer and
director of the Company at the time of exercise. In addition, the Securities, which were taken for investment
purposes and not for resale, were subject to restrictions on transfer. We did not engage in any public advertising or
general solicitation in connection with this transaction, and we provided each investor in the offering with disclosure
of all aspects of our business, including providing each investor with our reports filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission and other financial, business and corporate information. Based on our investigation, we
believed that the accredited investor obtained all information regarding the Company that he requested, received
answers to all questions
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posed and otherwise understood the risks of accepting our Securities for investment purposes.

The exercise terms of the options are described in Item 3.02(a) above.

The proceeds of the option exercise will be used to provide working capital to the Company.

6. Marketing Services Agreement

Between July 2005 and January 2006, the Company issued an aggregate of 6,000 shares of common stock, (1,000
shares per month) for services under a marketing services agreement. The shares were valued at $1.00 per share.

b.

The shares issued for marketing services were issued exclusively to one person who represented and warranted that
she qualified as an accredited investor within the meaning of Rule 501(a) of Regulation D. The shares issued for
services were restricted securities under the Securities Act.

The Company paid no fees or commissions in connection with the share issuances.

d.

The sale of the Securities was undertaken without registration under the Securities Act in reliance upon an exemption
from the registration requirements of the Securities Act set forth in Sections 4(2) thereunder. In addition, the
Securities, which were taken for investment purposes and not for resale, were subject to restrictions on transfer. We
did not engage in any public advertising or general solicitation in connection with this transaction, and we provided
each investor in the offering with disclosure of all aspects of our business, including providing each investor with our
reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and other financial, business and corporate information.
Based on our investigation, we believed that the investor obtained all information regarding the Company that he
requested, received answers to all questions posed and otherwise understood the risks of accepting our Securities for
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investment purposes.

€.

Not applicable.

f.

There were no proceeds received as a result of the issuance of the shares.

7.  General Manager Options Exercise

a.

On January 30, 2007, a previously awarded stock option grant to our General Manager at the Bull Durham Casino that
was to expire on that date was extended for an additional year. Total compensation cost associated with the extension
was $29,664, and is included in operating, general, and administrative expenses for the year ended June 30, 2007. The
fair value of the option extension was estimated utilizing the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following
assumptions: expected life of 0.5 years; expected volatility of 65%; risk free interest rate of 5.11% and no dividend
yield. On February 20, 2007 all the options associated with the extension were exercised, and as a result, 50,000
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shares of common stock were issued. The Company realized proceeds of $6,500 associated with the exercise of the
options.

b. The shares issued were issued exclusively to one person who serves on the board of directors of our subsidiary,
Casinos USA, Inc. and General Manager of the Bull Durham Casino. The shares issued upon exercise of the options
were restricted securities under the Securities Act.

c. The Company paid no fees or commissions in connection with the share issuances.

d.

The sale of the Securities was undertaken without registration under the Securities Act in reliance upon an exemption
from the registration requirements of the Securities Act set forth in Sections 4(2) thereunder. In addition, the
Securities, which were taken for investment purposes and not for resale, were subject to restrictions on transfer. We
did not engage in any public advertising or general solicitation in connection with this transaction, and we provided
each investor in the offering with disclosure of all aspects of our business, including providing each investor with our
reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and other financial, business and corporate information.
Based on our investigation, we believed that the investor obtained all information regarding the Company that he
requested, received answers to all questions posed and otherwise understood the risks of accepting our Securities for
investment purposes.

Not applicable.

f. The proceeds from the option exercise were used for general working capital.

On March 17, 2008, the Company accepted a subscription agreement pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue,
an aggregate of 100,000 shares of common stock, $.05 par value (the Common Stock or Shares ) in consideration of
$50,000.

The shares were issued to one person who qualified as an "accredited investor" within the meaning of Rule 501(a) of
Regulation D under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended (the "Securities Act"). The shares issued were restricted
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securities under the Securities Act.

b.

The Company paid no fees or commissions in connection with the issuance of the Shares.

The sale of the Securities was undertaken without registration under the Securities Act in reliance upon an exemption
from the registration requirements of the Securities Act set forth in Sections 4(2) thereunder. The investor qualified as
an "accredited investor" within the meaning of Rule 501(a) of Regulation D. In addition, the Securities, which were
taken for investment purposes and not for resale, were subject to restrictions on transfer. We did not engage in any
public advertising or general solicitation in connection with this transaction, and we provided the investor with
disclosure of all aspects of our business, including providing the investor with our reports filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission and other financial, business and corporate information. Based on our investigation, we
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believed that the accredited investor obtained all information regarding the Company that he requested, received
answers to all questions posed and otherwise understood the risks of accepting our Securities for investment purposes.

d.

Not applicable.

The proceeds received were used in connection with the acquisition of substantially all of the tangible and intangible
assets used in connection with the operation of the Doc Holliday Casino, Central City, Colorado which was finalized
March 18, 2008.

9.

On April 15, 2008, the Company accepted a subscription agreement pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue,
an aggregate of 100,000 shares of common stock, $.05 par value (the Common Stock or Shares ) in consideration of
$50,000.

The shares were issued to one person who qualified as an "accredited investor" within the meaning of Rule 501(a) of
Regulation D under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended (the "Securities Act"). The shares issued were restricted
securities under the Securities Act.

b.

The Company paid no fees or commissions in connection with the issuance of the Shares.

The sale of the Securities was undertaken without registration under the Securities Act in reliance upon an exemption
from the registration requirements of the Securities Act set forth in Sections 4(2) thereunder. The investor qualified as
an "accredited investor" within the meaning of Rule 501(a) of Regulation D. In addition, the Securities, which were
taken for investment purposes and not for resale, were subject to restrictions on transfer. We did not engage in any
public advertising or general solicitation in connection with this transaction, and we provided the investor with
disclosure of all aspects of our business, including providing the investor with our reports filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission and other financial, business and corporate information. Based on our investigation, we
believed that the accredited investor obtained all information regarding the Company that he requested, received
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answers to all questions posed and otherwise understood the risks of accepting our Securities for investment purposes.

d.

Not applicable.

e.
The proceeds received were used in connection with the acquisition of substantially all of the tangible and intangible

assets used in connection with the operation of the Doc Holliday Casino, Central City, Colorado which was finalized
March 18, 2008.
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10.

Stock Grant for Services

a. On September 2, 2008, the Company awarded an aggregate of 90,000 shares of common stock, $.05 par value (the
Common Stock or Shares ) valued at $0.50 per share in consideration of services provided by the Company s directors
and executive officers.

b. The shares were issued to four persons, each of whom qualified as an "accredited investor" within the meaning of
Rule 501(a) of Regulation D under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended (the "Securities Act"). The shares issued
were restricted securities under the Securities Act.

The Company paid no fees or commissions in connection with the issuance of the Shares.

d.

The grant of the Securities was undertaken without registration under the Securities Act in reliance upon an exemption
from the registration requirements of the Securities Act set forth in Sections 4(2) thereunder. The investor qualified as
an "accredited investor" within the meaning of Rule 501(a) of Regulation D. In addition, the Securities, which were
taken for investment purposes and not for resale, were subject to restrictions on transfer. We did not engage in any
public advertising or general solicitation in connection with this transaction, and we provided the investor with
disclosure of all aspects of our business, including providing the investor with our reports filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission and other financial, business and corporate information. Based on our investigation, we
believed that the accredited investor obtained all information regarding the Company that he requested, received
answers to all questions posed and otherwise understood the risks of accepting our Securities for investment purposes.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.
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EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

Weighted
Number of  average Number of
securities
securities to  exercise
be remaining
price of available

issued upon
outstanding for future issuances
exercise of

options, under equity
outstanding
warrants compensation
options, plans
and rights
warrants and (excluding
(b) securities
rights (a)
reflected in column
(a) (¢)
Equity compensation plans
approved by
-0- $0.00 -0-
security holders
Equity compensation plans not
approved
235.000 $.62 -0-
by security holders()
Total 235.000 $.62 -0-

(1) Includes nonqualified options granted to directors and officers.

ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data

We have set forth below certain selected financial data. The information has been derived from the financial
statements, financial information and notes thereto included elsewhere in this report.
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Statement of Operations Data:
Total revenues

Operating expenses

Net income

Net income attributible to common
shareholders

Basic earnings per common share

Shares used in computing basic
earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

Shares used in computing diluted
earnings per share

Balance Sheet Data:
Working capital
Total assets

Total liabilities
Stockholders' equity

Year Ended
June 30, 2008
$ 4,402,454
$ 4,164,151
$ 123,636
$ 105,780

$ 0.02

5,836,006
$ 0.02

5,923,088
June 30, 2008
$ 109,613
$ 7,248,316
$ 3,042,476
$ 4,205,840
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Year Ended
June 30, 2007
$ 3,578,122
$ 3,332,657
$ 119,077
$ 119,077
$ 0.02

5,158,249

$

0.02
5,273,247
June 30, 2007
$ 1,092,565
$ 5,385,899
$ 2,431,339
$ 2,954,560
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

Certain statements in this Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
which are not historical facts are forward-looking statements such as statements relating to future operating results,
existing and expected competition, financing and refinancing sources and availability and plans for future
development or expansion activities and capital expenditures. Such forward-looking statements involve a number of
risks and uncertainties that may significantly affect our liquidity and results in the future and, accordingly, actual
results may differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statements. Such risks and uncertainties
include, but are not limited to, those related to effects of competition, leverage and debt service financing and
refinancing efforts, general economic conditions, changes in gaming laws or regulations (including the legalization of
gaming in various jurisdictions) and risks related to development and construction activities. The following
discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto
appearing elsewhere in this report.

Overview

We operate in the domestic gaming industry. We were organized as a holding company for the purpose of acquiring
and operating casinos, gaming properties and other related interests.

As of June 30, 2008, our operating subsidiaries were Casinos USA, Inc. ("Casinos USA, a Colorado corporation),
which owns and operates the Bull Durham Saloon and Casino ("Bull Durham"), located in the limited stakes gaming
district of Black Hawk, Colorado, and Doc Holliday Casino II, LLC (a Colorado limited liability company), which
operates the Doc Holliday Casino ( Doc Holliday ), located in the limited stakes gaming district of Central City,
Colorado. Doc Holliday Casino II, LLC was incorporated in the state of Colorado on June 15, 2007 for the purpose of
acquiring substantially all the assets and certain liabilities of the Doc Holliday Casino, and to operate the casino. The
acquisition was completed on March 18, 2008. The results of Doc Holliday's operations have been included in the
consolidated financial statements since that date.

Our operations are seasonal. Our casinos typically experience a significant increase in business during the summer
tourist season.
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We operate in a highly regulated environment subject to the political process. Our retail gaming licenses are subject
to annual renewal by the Colorado Division of Gaming. Changes to existing statutes and regulations could have a
negative effect on our operations.

Results of Operations - Year Ended June 30, 2008 Compared to the Year Ended June 30, 2007

We recognized net income attributable to common shareholders after $17,856 of dividends on our Series D preferred
stock of $105,780 ($0.02 per share) for the year ended June 30, 2008 compared to net income attributable to common
shareholders of $119,077 ($0.02 per share) for the year ended June 30, 2007. The decrease in our net income
attributable to common shareholders is primarily due to the preferred stock dividends and operating results of the Doc
Holliday Casino which contributed a

28

44



Edgar Filing: CALLAWAY GOLF CO - Form SC 13G/A

net loss of approximately $85,000 during its start up period from its acquisition on March 18 through the end of our
fiscal year.

Revenues

Casino revenues for the year ended June 30, 2008 were $4,561,095 compared to $3,738,142 for the year ended June
30, 2007, an increase of $822,953 or 22%. Total full period revenues for the Bull Durham were $3,802,880, while
revenues for Doc Holliday were $758,215 from commencement of operations after the acquisition from March 19
through June 30, 2008. The full period coin-in for the Bull Durham casino was up 2.4% for the year ended June 30,
2008 over the year ended June 30, 2007, however we also experienced a negligible 0.04% decrease in our hold
percentage for the year ended June 30, 2008 over the year ended June 31, 2007.

Promotional allowances primarily include anticipated redemptions associated with the Bull Durham Casino s
Sharpshooter s Club which awards customers with cash payouts dependent upon the frequency and amount of their

gaming activities on our slot machines. The total allowances slightly decreased by $1,379 from $160,020 to $158,641

for the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2008, respectively. The primary reason for the slight decrease was attributed
a decrease in earnings under the program.

Operating Expenses

Casino operations: Includes all expenses associated with the operations of the Bull Durham Casino and the Doc
Holliday casino from March 19 through June 30, 2008. The following table summarizes such expenses for
comparison and discussion purposes:

For the years ended

June 30, June 30, $ %
2008 2007 Variance Variance
Labor & Benefits 1,547,141 1,235,387 311,754 25.2%
Marketing & Advertising 735,897 513,173 222,724 43.4%
Depreciation &
Amortization 523,936 480,390 43,546 9.1%
Food & Beverage 239,753 204,651 35,102 17.2%
Repair, Maintenance &
Supplies 189,524 156,834 32,690 20.8%
Device fees 231,896 149,944 81,952 54.7%
Professional fees 104,438 101,350 3,088 3.0%

to
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Insurance, Taxes &
Licenses

Utilities & Telephone
Occupancy
Other casino expenses
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132,990
109,739
59,209
74,516
3,949,039

103,425 29,565
71,726 38,013

- 59,209
54,480 20,036
3,071,360 877,679
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28.6%
53.0%

0.0%
36.8%
28.6%
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Labor & Benefits: Includes all salary and contract labor costs associated with the operations of the casinos, payroll
taxes, as well as costs associated with the casinos employee benefit and health insurance plans. The 25.2% increase is
primarily attributable to Doc Holliday operations after the acquisition from March 19 through June 30, 2008. Total
labor and benefits costs as a percentage of casino revenues increased from 33.0% to 33.9% for the years ended June

30, 2007 and 2008, respectively. We expect our total labor and benefits costs as a percentage of casino revenues to
decrease as the Doc Holliday casino operations stabilize over the near term.

Marketing & Advertising: Includes all costs associated with our advertising and marketing efforts including
promotional activities designed to drive customers to our casinos, and programs designed to foster customer loyalty.
Approximately $190,000 of the increase is attributed to the Doc Holliday operations after the acquisition from March
19 through June 30, 2008. The remaining approximately $30,000 of the increase is attributed to increased
promotional activity at the Bull Durham Casino including marketing supplies, and customer mailings.

Depreciation & Amortization: Primarily includes depreciation on our gaming equipment, casino building
improvements, furniture and fixtures, as well as amortization on our customer tracking software. The increase of
$43,546 is primarily attributable to depreciation of gaming assets of the Doc Holliday Casino for the period after the
acquisition from March 19 through June 30, 2008. We are continuing our efforts to upgrade and maintain the quality
and appearance of the machines in both casinos as part of our strategy to provide the best customer experience
possible to enhance customer loyalty.

Food & Beverage: Includes all costs associated with our bar and limited menu food services. The $35,102 increase
from the year ended June 30, 2007 is primarily the result of Doc Holliday operations after the acquisition from March
19 through June 30, 2008. Food and beverage costs as a percentage of casino revenues decreased slightly from 5.5%
for the year ended June 30, 2007 to 5.3% for the year ended June 30, 2008.

Repair. Maintenance & Supplies: Includes costs associated with the general upkeep of the facility, as well as parts and
repair efforts to maintain the quality of our slot machines. The increase of $32,690 is primarily attributable to Doc
Holliday operations after the acquisition from March 19 through June 30, 2008. Repair, maintenance and supplies
costs as a percentage of casino revenues remained unchanged at 4.2% for the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2008.

Device Fees: Includes fees paid to the local jurisdictions of the casinos based on the number of slot machines in
operation. Prior to calendar year 2007, the city of Blackhawk waived device fees on the first fifty slot machines
operated by a casino. In 2007, this waiver of fees was eliminated. Approximately $20,000 of the increase over the
comparable period in 2007 is attributed to the elimination of this waiver. The remaining approximately $60,000
increase is attributed to Doc Holliday operations after the acquisition from March 19 through June 30, 2008.

Professional Fees: Includes all costs and fees associated with legal services, accounting and auditing services, and the
Board of Directors of Casinos USA (d/b/a The Bull Durham Saloon & Casino). The slight increase of approximately
$3,000 is primarily attributed to an increase in the director per meeting compensation at Casinos USA. Total
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professional fees as a percentage of casino revenues decreased from 2.7% to 2.3% for the years ended June 30, 2007
and 2008, respectively.
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Insurance. Taxes & Licenses: Includes all non-payroll taxes, liability and property insurance, and licenses associated
with the operation of the casinos. The increase of $29,565 is attributed to Doc Holliday operations after the
acquisition from March 19 through June 30, 2008. Total insurance, taxes and licenses as a percentage of casino
revenues has remained substantially unchanged at 2.9% and 2.8% for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007,
respectively.

Utilities & Telephone: Includes all costs associated with the casinos telephone systems, cell phone usage, and utility
costs. The increase of $38,013 is primarily attributed to the Doc Holliday operations after the acquisition from March
19 through June 30, 2008, and to a lesser degree general increases in utility costs, particularly water and electricity
which resulted in a year over year increase at the Bull Durham Casino of approximately $10,000. The general rising
of utility costs have resulted the total utilities and telephone costs as a percentage of revenues from 1.9% for the year
ended June 30, 2007 to 2.4% for the year ended June 30, 2008.

Occupancy: Includes lease costs of the Doc Holliday Casino, which leases approximately 13,000 square feet of space
used for its gaming activities, supporting offices and storage space for $17,029 per month under an operating lease
that terminates in July 2015. Effective August 1, 2008 the monthly rent escalates to $25,362 per month. The lease
requires the Casino to pay for all building expenses until the landlord secures additional tenants to occupy the
remaining building space.

Other Casino Expenses: Includes all other costs of the casino operations not included in the above categories,
including travel, armored car services, postage, casino entertainment, employee education programs, and lease costs
associated with off-site storage units and gaming equipment. The $20,036 increase is primarily attributed to Doc
Holliday operations after the acquisition from March 19 through June 30, 2008.

Operating, general. and administrative: Generally includes all expenses associated with the operations of the parent
entity, Global Casinos, Inc., including legal and executive services provided by the company s principal executive
officer, accounting services provided by the company s principal accounting officer, as well as clerical and
bookkeeping services, corporate marketing efforts, and stock-based compensation costs relating to the company s
executive officers, directors, and subsidiary management.

For the year ended June 30, 2008, total operating, general, and administrative costs were $215,112, as compared to
$261,297 for the year ended June 30, 2007, a net decrease of $46,185 or 17.7%, and is attributable to three primary
factors. First, during the year ended June 30, 2007 we recognized $70,631 of stock based compensation costs
associated with the vesting of certain stock purchase options. No stock compensation expense was incurred during the
year ended June 30, 2008. Second, during the year ended June 30, 2007 we incurred approximately $16,000 of
expenses associated with the preparation and distribution of our annual meeting proxy materials. No costs associated
with the preparation and distribution of our 2007 annual meeting proxy were incurred during the year ended June 30,
2008. Finally, in April 2008 we contracted a consultant to provide certain corporate development services. The
agreement specifies the consultant be paid a total of $50,000, and shall terminate on September 1, 2008 unless
extended. Through June 30, 2008 a total of $28,320 has been charged on the contract. No such charges were incurred
during the year ended June 30, 2007. Other than these items, there were no significant variances in operating, general,
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and administrative costs between the comparable periods.

Corporate offices: Prior to January 2006, we leased approximately 4,200 square feet of space used as its corporate
offices. The lease required monthly payments of approximately $3,500. A portion of the space was subleased for
monthly rental income of approximately $2,500. In January 2006, the
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lease with the landlord was terminated and assumed by Gunpark Asset Management, LL.C (Gunpark), a company
operated by the Company s former President and Director. Concurrently, the Company entered into a Shared Services
Agreement with Gunpark. The agreement required Gunpark provide sufficient office space to the Company, and
requires the Company make monthly payments directly to the landlord of $3,000. The monthly payment was

allocated as $2,000 to rent expense, and $1,000 to clerical services. In March 2008, the agreement was modified by
both parties due to changes in the delivery of clerical services to be provided under the previous agreement. By

mutual agreement of both parties, the current agreement expired June 1, 2008. Net rent expense after giving effect to
sublease income received was $22,000 and $24,000 for the years ended June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007,

respectively, and is included in operating, general and administrative expenses. Upon termination of the Shared
Services Agreement, we began utilizing certain office functions and systems managed by the Company s president and
chief executive officer in Boulder, Colorado. As such, we have significantly reduced our corporate office space
requirements and do not expect additional further office space or services will be required under the current corporate
operating structure.

Stock based compensation: In fiscal year 2007, we adopted the provisions of, and account for stock-based

compensation in accordance with, the Financial Accounting Standards Board s ( FASB ) Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123 revised 2004 ( SFAS 123R ), Share-Based Payment which replaced” Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 ( SFAS 123 ), Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation and supersedes APB
Opinion No. 25 ( APB 25 ), Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. Under the fair value recognition provisions of
this statement, stock-based compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is
recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the period during which the holder is required to provide services

in exchange for the award, i.e., the vesting period. We elected the modified-prospective method, under which prior
periods are not revised for comparative purposes. For the year ended June 30, 2007 we recognized $70,631 of stock

based compensation costs associated with the vesting of certain stock purchase options which is included in operating,
general and administrative expenses as discussed above. No stock compensation expense was incurred during the

year ended June 30, 2008.

Interest Expense

Interest expense was $105,979 for the year ended June 30, 2008 compared to $93,800 for the year ended June 30,
2007, and primarily represents regularly scheduled payments on various senior and junior mortgages collateralized by
the Bull Durham Saloon and Casino real estate, as well as certain new debt incurred to facilitate the acquisition of the
Doc Holliday Casino in March 2008. Interest expense is partially offset by interest income earned on certain cash
balances maintained at financial institutions.
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Global Gaming Technologies: On February 28, 2006, we entered into an Organization Agreement with a certain
individual to form a for-profit limited liability company under the name of Global Gaming Technologies, LLC ( GGT ).
GGT was formed for the purpose of bringing to market two games of poker developed by the other party to the
agreement, whose contribution included all of his intellectual property rights related to the two games which he
developed. At the present time, both games are still under development and neither has been approved for use in any
gaming jurisdiction. At this time GGT has no revenues and none are expected until such time that patent protections
are secured and significant marketing of the games can commence. The investment is being accounted for under the
equity method. Its cash outlays have primarily been related to investigating patent protection for the products under
development and for various product development and organizational costs. For the years ended June 30, 2008 and
2007 we recorded $8,688 and $30,465, respectively, for various GGT organizational, product development and
marketing expenditures.

Series D Preferred Stock: In March 2008 we sold 700,000 shares of Series D preferred stock at its stated value of
$1.00 per share. The proceeds from the sale were used as partial compensation to the seller of the Doc Holliday
casino. The holders of the preferred shares are entitled to receive dividends at the rate of 8% per year, declared
quarterly and payable the 15% day of April, July, October and January of each year. For the year ended June 30, 2008,
$17,856 of dividends were declared on the Series D Preferred Stock.

Net Operating L.oss Carryover: For federal income tax purposes, Global has a net operating loss carryover (NOL)
approximating $5,600,000, which can be used to offset future taxable income, if any. Under the Tax Reform Act of
1986, the amounts of and the benefits from NOL's are subject to certain limitations including restrictions imposed
when there is a loss of business continuity or when ownership changes in excess of 50% of outstanding shares, under
certain circumstances. We do not believe the acquisition of Doc Holliday will result in impairment of our NOL.
However, there is no guarantee that Global will be able to utilize its NOL before it expires and accordingly, no
potential benefit has been recorded in the financial statements.

The loss on asset disposals of $2,123 for the year ended June 30, 2007 resulted from the retirement and sale of certain
casino equipment and fixtures.

Inflation did not have a material impact on the Company's operations for the period.

Other than the foregoing, management knows of no trends, demands, or uncertainties that are reasonably likely to
have a material impact on the Company's results of operations.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
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Our primary source of cash is internally generated through operations. As of June 30, 2008, neither the Company nor
its subsidiaries have commercial bank credit facilities. Consequently, we believe that cash necessary for future
operating needs must be internally generated though operations. Cash flow at one of the Company s operating
subsidiaries, Bull Durham, has been sufficient to fund operations and we believe that cash flow will be sufficient
during the next twelve months to continue our operations. We have not had sufficient time to determine if cash flows
from our other operating subsidiary, Doc Holliday, will be sufficient to fund its operations. From time to time, we
have depended on funds received through debt and equity financing to address operating shortfalls and
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capital requirements. We have also relied, from time to time, upon loans from affiliates to meet immediate cash
demands. There can be no assurance that these affiliates or other related parties will continue to provide funds to us in
the future if necessary, as there is no legal obligation on these parties to provide such loans.

At June 30, 2008, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of $1,163,416, substantially all of which was utilized in
our casino operations. Pursuant to state gaming regulations, the casinos are required to maintain cash balances
sufficient to pay potential jackpot awards. Our cash balances at June 30, 2008 were in excess of funds required by
gaming regulations.

Our working capital decreased by $982,952 to $109,613 at June 30, 2008 from $1,092,565 at June 30, 2006, almost
entirely due to cash outlays and short term debt issued in connection with our acquisition of Doc Holliday on March
18, 2008.

Cash provided by operating activities was $584,466 for the year ended June 30, 2008. For the year ended June 30,
2007, operating activities provided net cash of $861,234. The decrease in cash provided by operating activities of
$(276,768) was primarily the result of certain non-cash charges for stock based compensation in fiscal year 2007, as
well as an increase in our accrued gaming income for the year ended June 30, 2008.

Cash used in investing activities was $(1,629,726) for the year ended June 30, 2008. On March 18, 2008 we

completed the acquisition of substantially all the assets and certain liabilities of the Doc Holliday casino. The Asset
Purchase and Sale Agreement ( Agreement ) required us to deposit into escrow $100,000 as earnest money, which was
done during fiscal year 2007. Upon closing of the acquisition, these funds were released from escrow. The aggregate
purchase price was $2,900,471, including $1,665,376 in cash, 450,000 shares of the Company s common stock valued
at $.75 per share totaling $337,500, and a business personal property appraisal expense of $7,000, as well as $365,580
of liabilities assumed, and new short-term debt of $525,015. The new short term debt consists of two notes payable to
the seller. The first note was a 0% interest note of $400,000, due in full on or before March 31, 2009, and was valued

at $369,345 using a discount rate of 8%. The second note in the amount of $155,670, is an 8% installment note
requiring monthly principal and interest payments of $13,541, and matures on March 18, 2009.

During the twelve months ended June 30, 2008 we made cash purchases of gaming equipment totaling $47,350.
Additional gaming equipment valued at $44,804 was acquired in vendor financing arrangements. For the year ended
June 30, 2009 we expect to spend approximately $200,000 in capital expenditures primarily to continue our efforts to
upgrade and purchase new slot machines. We expect much of this activity to continue to be short-term financed by
our vendors under similar terms. Also during the year ended June 30, 2008 we paid $10,000 on the obligation
regarding our investment in Global Gaming Technologies, LLC. For the year ended June 30, 2007, we used net cash
of $225,359 in investing activities, which included $81,934 used for purchases of gaming equipment and building
improvements, as well as $50,000 paid on the obligation regarding our investment in Global Gaming Technologies,
LLC.
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On February 28, 2006, we entered into an Organization Agreement with a certain individual to form a for-profit

limited liability company under the name of Global Gaming Technologies, LLC ( GGT ). GGT was formed for the
purpose of bringing to market two games of poker developed by the other party to the agreement, whose contribution
included all of his intellectual property rights related to the two games which he developed. At the present time, both

games are still under
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development and neither has been approved for use in any gaming jurisdiction. At this time GGT has no revenues and
none are expected until such time that patent protections are secured and marketing of the games can commence.
Under the terms of the agreement we agreed to make an initial cash contribution to GGT of $100,000 in exchange for
a 25% equity interest. As of June 30, 2008, we had made total cash contributions totaling $70,000. The balance due
of $30,000 under the terms of the agreement has been recorded as a current liability. The timing of the future cash
payments required under the agreement is dependent upon the cash requirements of GGT to execute its business plan.
Also under the terms of the agreement, we have the option to make additional cash contribution of $100,000 in
exchange for an additional 25% equity interest. The investment is being accounted for under the equity method. Its
cash outlays have primarily been related to investigating patent protection for the products under development and for
various product development, organizational and marketing costs. For the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 we
recorded $8,688 and $30,465, respectively, for various GGT product development, organizational and marketing
costs.

Cash flows provided by financing activities increased $641,241 to $387,426 for the year ended June 30, 2008,
compared to cash used of $(253,815) in fiscal 2007. Principal payments on our long term debt totaled $408,874 for
the year ended June 30, 2008, including the payoff of a senior mortgage in the amount of $238,853 to an investment
company relating to the Bull Durham Casino. Principal payments on long term debt totaled $260,315 for the year
ended June 30, 2007, and generally represent principal payments on our mortgage debt and equipment financing
obligations.

In March 2008, we completed a private offering of 700,000 shares of Series D Preferred stock. The preferred stock
has a stated value of $1.00 per share, and its holders are entitled to receive dividends at the rate of 8% per year,
declared quarterly and payable on the 15% day of April, July, October and January of each year. The dividends are
cumulative and may be paid in cash, or at the option of the holder in shares of the Company s common stock valued at
the market price on the dividend record date. During the year ended June 30, 2008, dividends totaling $17,856 for the
Series D Preferred stock were declared, and in May 2008, $3,700 was paid to the preferred shareholders for dividends
declared at March 31, 2008. The preferred stock is redeemable at any time only at the option of the Company. At the
option of the holder, each preferred share is convertible to one share of the Company s common stock. The $700,000
proceeds from the private offering were used as partial payment to the seller of Doc Holliday at the acquisition closing
on March 18, 2008.

In February 2007, certain employee stock purchase options were exercised resulting in the issuance of 50,000 shares
of common stock and proceeds of $6,500.

Also in March 2008, the Company completed a private offering of 100,000 shares of common stock at a price of $.50
per share. The proceeds of $50,000 received from the sale were also used as partial payment to the seller of Doc
Holliday at the acquisition closing on March 18, 2008. And, in April 2008, the Company completed a private offering
of 100,000 shares of common stock to one investor at a price of $.50 per share. The proceeds were used for general
working capital.

Corporate Development Consulting Agreement
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On April 1, 2008 the Company entered into Consultation Agreement ( Agreement ) with an independent contractor to
provide corporate development services. The Agreement was to terminate on September 1, 2008, but was extended
by both parties on a month to month basis by verbal agreement. The agreement requires the Company pay the

consultant a fee equal to $50,000 payable
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in sums of not less than $10,000 per month. Through June 30, 2008 a total of $28,320 has been charged, on the
contract.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements as defined in Item 303(a)(4)(ii) of Securities and Exchange
Commission regulation S-K.

Use of Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Significant estimates included herein relate to the
recoverability of assets, the value of long-lived assets and liabilities, the value of share based compensation
transactions, the long-term viability of the business, the future impact of gaming regulations, and future obligations
under various tax statutes. Actual results may differ from estimates.

Other than the foregoing, management knows of no trends, demands, or uncertainties that are reasonably likely to
have a material impact on the Company's liquidity and capital resources.

ITEM 7A.
QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT

MARKET RISK.

Not applicable
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ITEMS8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The following consolidated financial statements are filed as part of this report:

1. Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm  Schumacher
& Associates

2. Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007

3. Statement of Earnings for the Years Ended June 30, 2008 and 2007

4. Statement of Stockholders' Equity for the Years Ended June 30, 2008 and
2007

5. Statement of Cash Flows for the Years Ended June 30, 2008 and 2007

6. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors

Global Casinos, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Global Casinos Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries as of June
30, 2008 and 2007, and the related Statements of Operations, Stockholders' Equity, and Cash Flows for the two years
ended June 30, 2008 and 2007. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States of America). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The company is not required to
have, nor were we engaged to perform an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company's internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Global Casinos, Inc. and Consolidated Subsidiaries as of June 30, 2008 and 2007, and the results of its operations
and cash flows for the two years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

SCHUMACHER & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Denver, Colorado
October 10, 2008
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GLOBAL CASINOS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

June 30, 2008

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accrued gaming income
Inventory
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

Acquisition escrow deposit

Investment in Global Gaming Technologies

Land, building and improvements, and equipment:

Land

Building and improvements

Equipment
Total land, building and improvements, and
equipment

Accumulated depreciation

Land, building and improvements, and
equipment, net

Goodwill

Total assets

1,163,416
219,821
16,469
92,972
1,492,678

60,847

517,950
4,121,308
3,057,670

7,696,928
(3,900,633)

3,796,295

1,898,496

7,248,316

CONTINUED ON FOLLOWING PAGE

$

$

June 30, 2007

1,563,968
39,273
7,410
13,606
1,624,257

100,000

69,535

517,950
4,110,685
2,347,232

6,975,867
(3,383,760)

3,592,107

5,385,899

See accompanying notes to these financial statements
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GLOBAL CASINOS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

CONTINUED FROM PREVIOUS PAGE

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOILDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable, trade $ 75,196 $ 47,226
Accounts payable, related parties 68,332 24,850
Accrued expenses 359,461 243,100
Accrued interest 6,390 3,852
Joint venture obligation 30,000 40,000
Current portion of long-term debt 589,581 52,664
Other 254,105 120,000
Total current liabilities 1,383,065 531,692
Long-term debt, less current portion 1,659,411 1,899,647

Commitments and contingencies (notes 1 through 10)

Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock: 10,000,000 shares authorized
Series A - no dividends, $2.00 stated value,
non-voting,
2,000,000 shares authorized, 200,500
shares issued and outstanding 401,000 401,000

Series B - 8% cumulative, convertible, $10.00
stated value, non-voting,

400,000 shares authorized, no shares

issued and outstanding - -
Series C - 7% cumulative, convertible, $1.20
stated value, voting

600,000 shares authorized, no shares
issued and outstanding - -



Edgar Filing: CALLAWAY GOLF CO - Form SC 13G/A

Series D - 8% cumulative, convertible, $1.00
stated value, non-voting

1,000,000 shares authorized, 700,000
shares issued and outstanding 700,000 -

Common stock - $0.05 par value; 50,000,000
shares authorized;
5,865,215 and 5,202,909 shares issued and
outstanding at June 30, 2008 and 2007,

respectively 293,261 260,146
Additional paid-in capital 14,027,093 13,632,564
Accumulated (deficit) (11,215,514) (11,339,150)

Total equity 4,205,840 2,954,560
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 7,248,316 $ 5,385,899

See accompanying notes to these financial statements
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LOBAL CASI INC. AND SUBSIDIARIE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007

2008 2007

Revenues:

Casino $ 4,561,095 $ 3,738,142

Promotional allowances (158,641) (160,020)

Net Revenues 4,402,454 3,578,122
Expenses:
3,949,039
Casino operations 3,071,360
Operating, general, and administrative 215,112 261,297
Total operating expenses 4,164,151 3,332,657

Income from operations 238,303 245,465
Other income (expense):

Interest (105,979) (93,800)

Equity in earnings of Global Gaming

Technologies (8,688) (30,465)

Loss on asset disposals - (2,123)
Income before provision for income taxes 123,636 119,077

Provision for income taxes - -
Net income 123,636 119,077
Series D Preferred dividends (17,856) -
Net income attributable to common
shareholders 105,780 $ 119,077
Earnings per common share:

Basic 0.02 $ 0.02

Diluted 0.02 $ 0.02

Weighted average shares outstanding:
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5,836,006 5,158,249
5,923,088 5,273,247

See accompanying notes to these financial statements
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Balance as of
June 30, 2006

Exercise of
options

Stock based
compensation
Net Income

Balance as of
June 30, 2007

Sale of Series
D Preferred
stock

Sales of
common stock

Issue common
stock,
acquisition
Conversion of
accounts
payable to
common stock

Series D
Preferred
dividends

Net Income

Balance as of
June 30, 2008
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
July 1, 2006 through June 30, 2008

SERIES A
PREFERRED STOCK
Number of
Shares Amount
200,500  $401,000
200,500 401,000

200,500 $ 401,000

SERIES D
PREFERRED STOCK

Number of

Shares Amount

700,000 700,000

700,000 $ 700,000

COMMON STOCK
Number of

Shares Amount
5,152,907 $257,646
50,000 2,500
5,202,907 260,146
200,000 10,000
450,000 22,500
12,308 615
5,865,215  $293,261

Additional
Paid

In Capital
$ 13,557,933
4,000

70,631

13,632,564

90,000

315,000

7,385

(17,856)

$ 14,027,093

Accumul

(Defici

$ (11,458

11

(11,33¢

12

$ (11,215
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See accompanying notes to these financial statements
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GLOBAL CASINOS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH F1.OWS

for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007

2008 2007
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 123,636  $ 119,077
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net
cash
provided by (used in) operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 531,600 480,390
Equity in earnings of Global Gaming
Technologies 8,688 30,465
Stock based compensation - 70,631
Loss on asset disposals - 2,123
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Accrued gaming income (180,548) 55,655
Inventories 879 170
Other current assets 19,419 -
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 69,149 86,638
Accrued interest 2,538 (10)
Other current liabilities 9,105 16,095
Net cash provided by operating activities 584,466 861,234
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of building improvements and equipment (47,350) (81,934)
Payment to acquisition escrow - (100,000)
Release of acquisition escrow funds 100,000 -
Acquisition of Doc Holliday net assets (1,672,376) -
Investment in Global Gaming Technologies (10,000) (50,000)
Proceeds from sale of assets - 6,575
Net cash (used) by investing activities (1,629,726) (225,359)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal payments on long-term debt (408,874) (260,315)
Proceeds from sale of Series D preferred stock 700,000 -
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Proceeds from sale of common stock 100,000 -

Payment of Series D preferred stock dividends (3,700) -
Proceeds from exercise of stock options - 6,500
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 387,426 (253,815)
Net (decrease) increase in cash (657,834) 382,060
Cash at beginning of period 1,563,968 1,181,908

Cash acquired in acquisition of Doc Holliday 257,282 -
Cash at end of period $ 1,163,416 $ 1,563,968

CONTINUED ON FOLLOWING PAGE

See accompanying notes to these financial statements
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GLOBAL CASINOS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FL. OWS

for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007

TINUED FROM PREVI PAGE

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

$ $
Cash paid for interest 116,456 112,589
$ - $ -
Cash paid for income taxes
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH
INVESTING AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Common stock issued in acquisition of Doc $ $ -
Holliday 337,500
$ $ -
Debt assumed in acquisition of Doc Holliday 653,087
$ $
Equipment financing obligations 44,804 99,772
$ $ -
Accounts payable converted to common stock 8,000
Accrued and unpaid dividends on Series D $ $ -
preferred stock 14,156

See accompanying notes to these financial statements
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GLOBAL CASINOS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2008

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This summary of significant accounting policies of Global Casinos, Inc. (Company) is presented to assist in
understanding the Company s financial statements. The financial statements and notes are representations of the
Company s management who is responsible for their integrity and objectivity. These accounting policies conform to
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and have been consistently applied in the
preparation of the financial statements.

Organization and Consolidation

Global Casinos, Inc. (the "Company or "Global"), a Utah corporation, operates two gaming casinos.

As of June 30, 2008, the Company s operating subsidiaries were Casinos USA, Inc. ("Casinos USA, a Colorado
corporation), which owns and operates the Bull Durham Saloon and Casino ("Bull Durham"), located in the limited
stakes gaming district of Black Hawk, Colorado, and Doc Holliday Casino II, LLC (a Colorado limited liability
company), which operates the Doc Holliday Casino ( Doc Holliday ), located in the limited stakes gaming district of
Central City, Colorado. Doc Holliday Casino II, LLC was incorporated in the state of Colorado on June 15, 2007 for
the purpose of acquiring substantially all the assets and certain liabilities of the Doc Holliday Casino, and to operate
the casino. The acquisition was completed on March 18, 2008. The results of Doc Holliday's operations have been
included in the consolidated financial statements since that date.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company include the accounts of its wholly owned subsidiaries. All
significant inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
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and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Significant estimates included herein relate to the
recoverability of assets, the value of long-lived assets and liabilities, the value of share based compensation
transactions, the long-term viability of the business, the future impact of gaming regulations, and future obligations
under various tax statutes. Actual results may differ from estimates.

Risk Considerations

The Company operates in a highly regulated environment subject to the political process. Our retail gaming licenses
are subject to annual renewal by the Colorado Division of Gaming. Changes to existing statutes and regulations could
have a negative effect on our operations. In addition, since the Company s two gaming facilities are both located in the
Central City and Black Hawk, Colorado
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geographic area, the potential for severe financial impact can result from negative effects of economic conditions
within the market or geographic area. This concentration results in an associated risk and uncertainty.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash
and cash equivalents, and accounts receivables. At June 30, 2008, the Company had approximately $244,000 of cash
or cash equivalents in financial institutions in excess of amounts insured by agencies of the U.S. Government.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value estimates discussed herein are based upon certain market assumptions and pertinent information available
to management. The Company's financial instruments include cash, accrued gaming income, accounts payable,
accrued expenses, other current liabilities and long-term debt. Except for long-term debt, the carrying value of
financial instruments approximated fair value due to their short maturities.

The carrying value of long-term debt approximated fair value because interest rates on these instruments are similar to
quoted rates for instruments with similar risks.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash consists of demand deposits and vault cash used in casino operations. The Company considers all highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Accrued Gaming Income

Gaming income represents the difference between the cash played by customers, and the cash paid out by the casino
machines. On a regular basis, the cash representing the casino s revenue is pulled from the machines and deposited.
However, this process does not always occur at the end of the last business day of the month. Accrued gaming income
represents the amount of revenue (cash) in the machines that has not yet been pulled and deposited at the end of the
reporting period. At June 30, 2008 and 2007, $219,821 and $39,273 of income, respectively, was accrued and
recorded as a current asset.
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Inventories

Inventories primarily consist of food and beverage supplies and are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is
determined by the specific-cost method.

Land, Building and Improvements, and Equipment

Land, building and improvements, and equipment are carried at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives. The building is depreciated over 31 years, and improvements and equipment
are depreciated over five to seven years. Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 was
$523,936 and $480,390, respectively.

77



Edgar Filing: CALLAWAY GOLF CO - Form SC 13G/A

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment
or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, the Company evaluates its long-lived assets for impairment when events or changes
in circumstances indicate, in management's judgment, that the carrying value of such assets may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying value to future undiscounted
cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered impaired, the impairment to be
recognized is determined as the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the assets. Management
believes that as of June 30, 2008, there is no impairment in the carrying value of its long-lived assets.

Revenue Recognition

In accordance with gaming industry practice, the Company recognizes casino revenues as the net win from gaming
activities, which is the difference between gaming wins and losses. Anticipated payouts resulting from our customer
loyalty program (Sharpshooter s Club), in which registered customers are awarded cash based on the frequency and
amounts of their gaming activities are included in promotional allowances. In accordance with gaming industry
practice and EITF 00-22, these promotional allowances are presented as a reduction of casino revenues.

Adpvertising Costs

The Company expenses all advertising costs as they are incurred. Advertising costs were $1,318 and $180 for the
years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Company uses the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Accordingly, deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement
carrying amounts of assets and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected
to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates resulting from new
legislation is recognized in income in the period of enactment. A valuation allowance is established against deferred
tax assets when management concludes that the "more likely than not" realization criteria has not been met.

Earnings Per Common Share
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Earnings (or loss) per share ("EPS") are calculated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 128, Earnings Per
Share. SFAS No. 128 requires the Company to report both basic earnings per share, which is based on the
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding, and diluted earnings per share, which is based on the
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding plus all dilutive potential common shares outstanding,
except where the effect of their inclusion would be anti-dilutive.
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Potentially dilutive shares of 39,399 and 28,636 were not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share for
the year ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively, as their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive. The
anti-dilutive shares represented certain out of the money stock options.

Stock-Based Compensation

During the year ended June 30, 2007, we adopted the provisions of, and account for stock-based compensation in
accordance with, the Financial Accounting Standards Board s ( FASB ) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 123 revised 2004 ( SFAS 123R ), Share-Based Payment which replaced” Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123 ( SFAS 123 ), Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25
( APB 25 ), Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. Under the fair value recognition provisions of this statement,
stock-based compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as
expense on a straight-line basis over the period during which the holder is required to provide services in exchange for
the award, i.e., the vesting period. We elected the modified-prospective method, under which prior periods are not
revised for comparative purposes. The valuation provisions of SFAS 123R apply to new grants and to grants that were
outstanding as of the effective date and are subsequently modified. Estimated compensation for grants that were
outstanding as of the effective date will be recognized over the remaining service period using the compensation cost
estimated for the SFAS 123 pro forma disclosures.

For the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 we recorded compensation expense of $-0- and $70,631, respectively,
under the requirements as discussed above.

Comprehensive Income

SFAS No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income, established standards for reporting and display of comprehensive
income, its components and accumulated balances. For the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, there were no
differences between reported net income and comprehensive income.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, established requirements for disclosure
of derivative instruments and hedging activities. During the periods covered by the financial statements the Company
did not have any derivative financial instruments and did not participate in hedging activities.

Segment Information
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The Company currently operates in one business segment as determined in accordance with SFAS No. 131,
Disclosure about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information. The determination of reportable segments is
based on the way management organizes financial information for making operating decisions and assessing
performance. All operations are located in the United States of America.

Recent Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157 ( SFAS 157 ), Fair Value
Measurements, in order to establish a single definition of fair value and a
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framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles that is intended to result in increased
consistency and comparability in fair value measurements. SFAS 157 also expands disclosures about fair value
measurements, with the intention of improving the quality of information provided to users of financial statements.
The standard applies whenever other authoritative literature requires (or permits) certain assets or liabilities to be
measured at fair value, but does not expand the use of fair value.

SFAS 157 was originally effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007,
and interim periods within those years with early adoption permitted. In early 2008, the FASB issued Staff Position
(FSP) FAS-157-2, which delayed by one year, the effective date of SFAS 157 for all non-financial assets and
non-financial liabilities, except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a
recurring basis (at least annually). The delay pertains to items including, but not limited to, non-financial assets and
non-financial liabilities initially measured at fair value in a business combination, reporting units measured at fair
value in the first step of evaluating goodwill for impairment under SFAS 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,
indefinite-lived intangible assets measured at fair value for impairment assessment under SFAS 142, and long-lived
assets measured at fair value for impairment assessment under SFAS 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal
of Long-Lived Assets. The Company adopted the portion of SFAS 157 that has not been delayed by FSP FAS-157-2 as
of January 1, 2008, and plans to adopt the balance of its provisions as of January 1, 2009.

The Company does not have balance sheet items carried at fair value on a recurring basis (to which SFAS 157 applies
in 2008) such as derivative financial instruments which are valued primarily based on quoted prices in active or
brokered markets for identical as well as similar assets and liabilities. Balance sheet items carried at fair value on a
non-recurring basis (to which SFAS 157 will apply in 2009) consist of goodwill and property and equipment. The
adoption of SFAS 157 in 2008 has had no effect on the measurement of the Company s financial assets and liabilities.
The Company is continuing to evaluate the impact the standard will have on the determination of fair value related to
non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities in post-2008 years.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115. SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to measure
many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses related to these
financial instruments reported in earnings at each subsequent reporting date. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007. The adoption of SFAS No. 159 is not expected to have a material impact on the
Company s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position ( FSP ) No. 142-3, Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible
Assets ( FSP 142-3 ). FSP 142-3 amends the factors to be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions
used to determine the useful life of intangible assets under SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. Its
intent is to improve the consistency between the useful life of an intangible asset and the period of expected cash

flows used to measure its fair value. This FSP is effective on January 1, 2009. The adoption of SFAS No. 159 is not
expected to have a material impact on the Company s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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The FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 162 ( SFAS 162 ), The Hierarchy of Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles, in May 2008. This Statement identifies the
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sources of accounting principles and the framework for selecting the principles to be used in the preparation of
financial statements of nongovernmental entities that are presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) in the United States (the GAAP hierarchy). This Statement will become effective 60 days
following the SEC s approval of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board amendments to AU Section 411,
The Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity With Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. The Company does
not expect that the adoption of this statement will have a material effect on the Company s financial statements.

There were various other accounting standards and interpretations issued during 2008 and 2007, none of which are
expected to have a material impact on the Company s consolidated financial position, operations, or cash flows.

2. ACQUISITION

On March 18, 2008 the Company completed its acquisition of substantially all the assets and certain liabilities of the
Doc Holliday Casino ( Casino ). The results of the Casino have been included in the consolidated financial statements
since that date. The Casino is a limited stakes gaming establishment located in Central City, Colorado and is

generally considered to be in the same market and gaming environment as the Bull Durham Saloon and Casino. Our
acquisition of the Casino will allow us to benefit from joint marketing efforts, and to a lesser degree reduce its
administrative operating expenses through economies of scale.

The purchase was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 141, Business Combinations. Under the purchase method of accounting, the total purchase
price, including transaction costs, is allocated to the assets and liabilities acquired based on their fair values at the
completion of the transaction. The aggregate purchase price was $2,900,471, including $1,665,376 in cash, 450,000
shares of the Company s common stock valued at $.75 per share totaling $337,500, and a business personal property
appraisal expense of $7,000, as well as $365,580 of liabilities assumed, and new short-term debt of $525,015. The
value of the common stock was determined by the average of the closing prices of the Company s common stock for
the day prior through the day after the closing of the acquisition. Two notes payable were issued to the seller by Doc
Holliday II, LLC. The first note was a 0% interest note of $400,000, due in full on or before March 31, 2009, and was
valued at $369,345 using a discount rate of 8%. The second note in the amount of $155,670, is an 8% installment
note requiring monthly principal and interest payments of $13,541, and matures on March 18, 2009.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of
the acquisition. Intangible assets purchased have been determined to have minimal value, and as such none have been
recorded.
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At March 18,
2008
Current assets, including $257,282 in cash $ 366,005
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 635,970
Goodwill 1,898,496
Total assets acquired 2,900,471
Current liabilities 237,508
Debt 653,087
Total liabilities assumed 890,595
Net assets acquired $ 2,009,876

Goodwill resulting from the transaction has not been allocated to specific intangible assets. It is expected that all
goodwill will be deductible for tax purposes.

3. NOTES PAYABLE AND LONG-TERM DEBT

At June 30, 2008, notes payable and long-term debt consisted of the following:

Senior mortgage payable to an investment company,
collateralized by real estate, interest at 12%, monthly
payments of $7,646 through September 2009. Final

payment of $721,475.

$ 727,080
Junior mortgages payable to private lenders,
collateralized by real estate, interest at 4%, monthly
payments of $5,054 through September 2009. Final
payment of $909,000.
938,502

Note payable to seller of Doc Holliday Casino,
uncollateralized, total principal due March 31, 2009,
no interest, net of discount of $22,991. 343,676
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Installment note payable to seller of Doc Holliday
Casino, uncollateralized, requiring monthly

payments of $13,541 beginning on April 18, 2008,
interest at 8%, final payment due March 18, 2009.

Installment note payable to equipment supplier,
collateralized by equipment, requiring monthly
payments of $7,603, interest at 8.5%, final payment
due September 18, 2009.

Installment note payable to equipment supplier under
Discount Conversion Program Agreement,
collateralized by equipment, requiring monthly
payments of $2,797, no interest, final payment due
December 10, 2008.

Total notes payable and long-term debt
Less current portion
Long-term debt, net

117,908

107,840

13.986

2,248,992

589.581
1.659.411
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Scheduled maturities of notes payable and long-term debt for the years ending June 30 are as follows:

2009 $

589,581
2010 1.659.411
Total $ 2.248.992

4. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Preferred Stock

The Company has authorized 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock. These shares may be issued in series with such
rights and preferences as may be determined by the Board of Directors.

Series A Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock

The Company's Board of Directors has authorized 2,000,000 shares of $2.00 stated value, Series A Preferred Stock.
The preferred stock has a senior liquidation preference value of $2.00 per share. It does not bear dividends. The
conversion privileges originally included with the stock have expired. The preferred stock originally contained a
mandatory redemption feature that required the Company to redeem the outstanding stock on May 31, 1995 at a rate
of $2.00 per share. On May 31, 1995, a majority of the preferred stockholders agreed to waive the mandatory
redemption in consideration for a lower conversion price into common shares at $1.125 per share. Subsequently,
holders of 1,205,750 shares of Series A preferred stock converted their holdings into common stock. The remaining
200,500 outstanding shares of Series A preferred stock are held by owners who chose not to participate in the revised
offer and remain outstanding at June 30, 2008. During the year ended June 30, 2005, the Company determined that
the mandatory redemption feature expired due to the statute of limitations. Accordingly, the Series A preferred stock
was reclassified from current liabilities to stockholders' equity.
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Series B Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock

The Company's Board of Directors has authorized 400,000 shares of $10.00 stated value, Series B Convertible
Preferred Stock. Each share of Series B preferred stock is convertible into one share of the Company's common stock
or may be redeemed at an exercise price of $10.00 per share. In addition, the Series B shares have a junior liquidation
preference of $10.00 per share. Holders of the Series B preferred stocks are entitled to receive an annual dividend
payable at the rate of 8% per annum, which is cumulative, and unpaid dividends bear interest at an annual rate of 12%.
As of June 30, 2008, there were no shares outstanding.

Series C Convertible Preferred Stock

In January 1999, the Board of Directors of the Company ratified the issuance of Series C preferred stock. The
Company has authorized 600,000 Series C shares with a stated value of $1.20 per share.
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Series C shares are convertible into common stock at a rate of $1.20 per share. Holders of Series C preferred stock are
entitled to vote and to receive dividends at the annual rate of 7% based on the stated value per share. In addition, the
holders of Series C preferred stock are entitled to participate, pro rata, in dividends paid on outstanding shares of
common stock. The dividends are cumulative and unpaid dividends bear interest at an annual rate of 10%.

Effective April 30, 2005, the remaining 39,101 Series C preferred shares outstanding were redeemed by the Company
for a cash payment of $74,626, including accrued dividends and interest thereon.

Series D Convertible Preferred Stock

In February 2008, the Board of Directors of the Company established a series of the class of preferred stock

designated Series D Convertible Preferred Stock (Series D preferred stock) and authorized an aggregate of 1,000,000
non-voting shares with a stated value of $1.00 per share. Holders of the Series D preferred stock are entitled to

receive dividends at the annual rate of eight percent (8%) based on the stated value per share computed on the basis of
a 360 day year and twelve 30 day months. Dividends are cumulative, shall be declared quarterly, and are calculated
from the date of issue and payable on the fifteenth day of April, July, October and January. The dividends may be

paid, at the option of the holder either in cash or by the issuance of shares of the Company s common stock valued at
the market price on the dividend record date. Shares of the Series D preferred stock are redeemable at the Company s
option. At the option of the holder shares of the Series D preferred stock plus any declared and unpaid dividends are
convertible to shares of the Company s common stock at a conversion rate of $1.00 per share.

In March 2008, the Company completed a private offering of 700,000 shares of Series D Preferred stock. On March
31, 2008, $3,700 of dividends were declared and subsequently paid on April 15, 2008. On June 30, 2008, $14,156 of
dividends were declared and subsequently paid in July. The $700,000 proceeds from the private offering were used as
partial payment to the seller of Doc Holliday at the acquisition closing on March 18, 2008.

Common Stock

The Company has authorized 50,000,000 shares of $0.05 par value common stock.

In June 2008, $8,000 of amounts due to the company s Chief Financial Officer for prior services was converted to
common stock. As aresult, 12,308 shares valued at $0.65 per share were issued.

In April 2008, the Company sold 100,000 shares of its common stock to an investor at a price of $0.50 per share. The
$50,000 proceeds were utilized for general working capital purposes.
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In March 2008, the Company completed a private offering of 100,000 shares of common stock at a price of $.50 per
share. The proceeds of $50,000 received from the sale were also used as partial payment to the seller of Doc Holliday
at the acquisition closing on March 18, 2008.

As partial consideration for the acquisition of Doc Holliday, the Company issued 450,000 shares of common stock to
the seller. The shares were valued at $.75 per share using the average of the closing prices of the common stock for
the day prior through the day after the closing of the acquisition on March 18, 2008.

91



Edgar Filing: CALLAWAY GOLF CO - Form SC 13G/A

On January 30, 2007, a previously awarded stock option grant to our General Manager at the Bull Durham Casino that
was to expire on that date was extended for an additional year. Total compensation cost associated with the extension
was $29,664, and is included in operating, general, and administrative expenses for the year ended June 30, 2007. The
fair value of the option extension was estimated utilizing the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following
assumptions: expected life of 0.5 years; expected volatility of 65%; risk free interest rate of 5.11% and no dividend
yield. On February 20, 2007 all the options associated with the extension were exercised, and as a result, 50,000
shares of common stock were issued. The Company realized proceeds of $6,500 associated with the exercise of the
options.

On January 5, 2007, the stockholders approved a proposal to adopt and approve a reverse split of up to a ratio of
one-for-five of the issued and outstanding shares of our common stock, and issued and outstanding options, warrants
and other rights convertible into shares of our common stock, all at the discretion of our Board of Directors to be
implemented in the future as and when determined by our Board of Directors.

5. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Leases

The Doc Holliday Casino currently leases approximately 13,000 square feet of space used for its gaming activities,
supporting offices and storage space for $17,029 per month under an operating lease that terminates in July 2015.
Effective August 1, 2008 the monthly rent escalates to $25,362 per month. The lease requires the Casino to pay for

all building expenses until the landlord secures additional tenants to occupy the remaining building space. If the
building is fully leased the Casino s proportionate share will be equal to 32% of the total building expense burden. The
lease also provides for a credit if the total building expenses increase by more than 3% over a base year calculation.

Net rent expense for the period March 18 through June 30, 2008 was $59,210. At June 30, 2008 the total credit
available to apply against future minimum rent payments through July 31, 2009 was $71,020, and is included in other
current assets. Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

2009 $ 296,011

2010 304,344

2011 304,344

2012 304,344
and

2013 thereafter 634,050

Total $ 1,843,093
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Prior to January 2006, the Company leased approximately 4,200 square feet of space used as its corporate offices.
The lease required monthly payments of approximately $3,500. A portion of the space was subleased for monthly
rental income of approximately $2,500. In January 2006, the lease with the landlord was terminated and assumed by
Gunpark Asset Management, LLC (Gunpark), a company operated by the Company s former President and Director.
Concurrently, the Company entered into a Shared Services Agreement with Gunpark. The agreement required
Gunpark provide
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sufficient office space to the Company, and requires the Company make monthly payments directly to the landlord of
$3,000. The monthly payment was allocated as $2,000 to rent expense, and $1,000 to clerical services. In March
2008, the agreement was modified by both parties due to changes in the delivery of clerical services to be provided
under the previous agreement. By mutual agreement of both parties, the current agreement expired June 1, 2008. Net
rent expense after giving effect to sublease income received was $22,000 and $24,000 for the years ended June 30,
2008 and June 30, 2007, respectively.

6. INCOME TAXES

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to income taxes on income arising in, or derived from, the tax
jurisdictions in which they operate.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Deferred tax assets are
comprised mainly of net operating loss carry-forwards.

The reconciliation between the statutory federal tax rate and the effective tax rate as a percentage is as follows:

2007 2006
Statutory federal income tax rate 34% 34%
Effect of net operating loss G4 (34
carry-forward

% %

At June 30, 2008, the Company had net operating loss carry forwards of approximately $5,585,000 available to reduce
future taxable income. The net operating loss carry forwards expire in the years ending June 30 as follows:

2010 909,000
2011 518,000
2012 790,000
2013 1,985,000
2014 316,000
2015 985,000
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2016 82.000
$5.585.000

When more than a 50% change in ownership occurs, over a three-year period, as defined, the Tax Reform Act of 1986
limits the utilization of net operating loss (NOL) carry forwards in the years following the change in ownership.
Therefore, the Company's utilization of its NOL carry forwards may be partially reduced as a result of changes in
stock ownership. No determination has been made as of June 30, 2008, as to what implications, if any, there will be in
the net operating loss carry forwards of the Company. In addition, the Company has a limited history of earnings, and
there is no guarantee of future earnings to offset the net operating loss carry forwards. The deferred tax asset of
approximately $1,900,000 is offset by a valuation allowance due to the uncertainty of the realization of the net
operating loss carry forwards. The net decrease in the valuation allowance was approximately $29,000 from June 30,
2007 to June 30, 2008.
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7. STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

The Company has a Stock Incentive Plan (the "Incentive Plan"), that allows the Company to grant incentive stock

options and/or purchase rights (collectively "Rights") to officers, employees, former employees and consultants of the

Company and its subsidiaries.

A summary of stock option activity is as follows:

Weighted Weighted
Number average average

of Exercise fair
shares price value

Balance at

June 30, 285,000 $ 0.53
2006
Granted 0
Exercised (50.000) $ 0.13
Balance at

June 30, 235,000 $0.62
2007
Granted 0
Exercised 0
Balance at

June 30, 235.000 $0.62
2008

The following table summarizes information about fixed-price stock options at June 30, 2008:

Outstanding
Weighted Weighted Weighted-
Average Average  Average Exercisable
Exercise Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Prices Outstanding Life Price Exercisable Price
$0.10 100,000 1.1 $0.10 100,000  $0.10
years
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$ 1.00 135.000 4.5 years $1.00 _135.000 $1.00
235.000 235.000

During the year ended June 30, 2007, we adopted the provisions of, and account for stock-based compensation in
accordance with, the Financial Accounting Standards Board s ( FASB ) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 123 revised 2004 ( SFAS 123R ), Share-Based Payment which replaced” Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123 ( SFAS 123 ), Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25

( APB 25 ), Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. Under the fair value recognition provisions of this statement,
stock-based compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as
expense on a straight-line basis over the period during which the holder is required to provide services in exchange for
the award, i.e., the vesting period. We elected the modified-prospective method, under which prior periods are not
revised for comparative purposes. The valuation provisions of SFAS 123R apply to new grants and to grants that were
outstanding as of the effective date and are subsequently modified. Estimated compensation for grants that were
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outstanding as of the effective date will be recognized over the remaining service period using the compensation cost
estimated for the SFAS 123 pro forma disclosures.

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.
Expected volatility is based on historical volatility as well as expected trends for any known or expected events that
might affect the volatility of our future stock prices. Because of the lack of historical forfeiture data, no adjustments to
the expected option life were made for expected forfeitures. The expected life represents an estimate of the time
options are expected to remain outstanding. The risk-free interest rate for periods within the contractual life of the
option is based on the U.S. treasury yield in effect at the time of grant.

The following table sets forth fair value per share information, including related assumptions, used to determine
compensation cost for the Company s stock options consistent with the requirements of SFAS No. 123(R) for 2008 and
2007:

Years ended

June 30,
2008 2007
Weighted-average fair value per share of options granted or
modified during the year (estimated on grant date using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model) n/a $0.59
Weighted-average assumptions:
Expected stock price volatility n/a 65%
Risk-free interest rate n/a 5.11%
Expected option life (years) n/a 0.5
Expected annual dividend yield n/a 0%

For the year ended June 30, 2007 we recorded compensation expense of $70,631, under the requirements as discussed
above, which is included in Operating, general and administrative expenses. No such expense was recorded for the
year ended June 30, 2008.

During the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, the amount of cash received from the exercise of stock options was
$-0- and $6,500, respectively.
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8. CONSULTING AGREEMENT

On April 1, 2008 the Company entered into Consultation Agreement ( Agreement ) with an independent contractor to
provide corporate development services. The Agreement was to terminate on September 1, 2008, but was extended

by both parties on a month to month basis by verbal agreement. The agreement requires the Company pay the
consultant a fee equal to $50,000 payable in sums of not less than $10,000 per month. For the year ended June 30,
2008, $28,320 has been charged to operating, general and administrative services.

In August 2008, we entered into an agreement with a marketing firm to provide investor relations services. The
agreement has a term of six months and requires a monthly fee of $2,000.

9. RELATED PARTIES

An officer and director operates a law firm that provides legal services to the Company. During the years ended June
30, 2008 and 2007, his billings to the Company totaled $113,214 and $87,261 respectively. At June 30, 2008 and
2007, amounts due to him were $63,831 and $19,700, respectively, and are included in accounts payable, related
parties.

In 2006, the Company contracted an officer to provide management and accounting services to the Company. During
the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, his billings to the company for services were $29,900 and $26,650,
respectively. At June 30, 2008 and 2007, amounts due him were $4,500 and $5,150, respectively, and are included in
accounts payable, related parties. In addition, in June 2008, $8,000 of amounts due to the officer for prior services
was converted to common stock. As a result, 12,308 shares valued at $0.65 per share were issued.

10. INVESTMENT IN GLOBAL GAMING TECHNOLOGIES

On February 28, 2006, the Company entered into an Organization Agreement with a certain individual to form a
for-profit limited liability company under the name of Global Gaming Technologies, LLC ( GGT ). Under the terms of
the Agreement, the individual contributed to GGT all of his intellectual property rights related to two games of poker,
which he individually developed. The Company agreed to make an initial cash capital contribution to GGT of

$100,000, for which it received a 25% equity interest in GGT. At the Company s election, it may make an additional
$100,000 cash capital contribution to GGT for which it will receive an additional 25% equity interest. The initial cash
contribution will be used to further develop the two games and to investigate possible patent protection. At the

present time, both games are still under development and neither has been approved for use in any gaming

jurisdiction. As of June 30, 2008, GGT had no revenues.
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The investment is being accounted for under the equity method. Its cash outlays have primarily been related to
investigating patent protection for the products under development and for various product development,
organizational start-up costs and limited marketing efforts. For the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 we have
recorded $8,688 and $30,465, respectively, for various GGT product development expenditures. Since February
2006, we have recorded $39,153, cumulatively, for various GGT start-up, product development and marketing costs.
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As of June 30, 2008, the Company has made cash payments to GGT of $70,000 as part of the initial $100,000 cash
capital payments required under the Agreement. The remaining $30,000 obligation was recorded as a current liability.

11. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On September 2, 2008, the Company awarded an aggregate of 90,000
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